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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED  
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 73rd Annual General Meeting of Gammon Pakistan Limited (the Company) will 
be held at Gammon House, 400/2, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi on Wednesday 28th October, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. 
to transact the following business. 
 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1 To confirm minutes of the 72nd Annual General Meeting held on 27th December, 2019 
 
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended, 30th June 2020 together with the Director’s and Auditors’ reports thereon. 
 
3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year to be ending on 30th June 2021 and to fix their 

remuneration.  
 
4. To elect the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017. The Board 

of Directors had fixed the number of Directors at Seven (7) of this term of three years commencing from 
November 1, 2020. The names of retiring Directors are as under: 

 
I. Saad Waheed  

II. Mr. Fazal ur Rehman Khan Burki 
III. Mr, Abdul Karim Khan  
IV. Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak 
V.  Mr. Kamal Abdullah 

VI. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak  
VII. Mr, Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak  

 
To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair. 
 
         BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
               AMIN UR RASHEED  
            COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
Rawalpindi 
Dated: 7 October 2020 
 

NOTES: 
 

BOOK CLOSURE:  
 
The share transfer books of the Company will be closed from 15th October, 2020 to 21st October, 2020, both 
days inclusive. Transfer of shares received at our Share Registration office i.e. Vision Consulting Limited, 
Financial & Management Consultants, 3-C, LDA Plats, Lawrence Road, Lahore at the close of business on 16th 
October, 2020 will be treated in time for the purpose of entitlement. 
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CHANGE IN ADDRESSES AND CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:  
 
Members of the Company are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any, and ask for 
consolidation of their folio nos. provided any member holds more than one folio numbers. 
 
FILLING OF THE CONSENT LETTER:  
 
Any person who seeks to contest an Election to the office of Directors shall, whether he is retiring Director or 
otherwise, file with the company at its registered office not late r than fourteen days before the date of Annual 
General Meeting, a notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for the Election of Directors in terms of 
Section 159(3) of the Companies Ordinance, 2017 together with the relevant declarations as required under the 
Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
E-VOTING  
 
Pursuant to SECP S.R.O No. 43(1)/2016 dated January 22, 2016, the members can also exercise their right to 
vote through e-voting by giving their consent in writing at least 10 days before the date of meeting to the 
Company on the appointment of Execution Officer by the intermediary as a Proxy.  
 
PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:  
 
Any member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting shall be entitled to appoint any other numbers as his/her 
proxy to attend and vote in respect of him/her and the proxy instrument shall be received by the Company not 
later than 48 hours before the meeting. 
 
INSTRUCTION FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS:  
 
CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 
dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 
 
 a. For attending the meeting: 

i. In case of individuals, the account holder and/ or the person whose securities are in 
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall 
authenticate his/her identity by showing his original National Identity Card (NIC) or 
Original Passport at the time of attending the Meeting. 

ii. In case of corporate entity the Board of Director’s Resolution/Power of Attorney with 
certified specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been 
provided earlier) at the time of the meeting. 

 
For appointing proxies: 
 
iii. In case of individuals the account holder and/ or person whose securities are in group 

account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations shall submit the 
proxy form as per the above requirements. 

iv. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC 
numbers shall be mentioned on the Form. 

v. Attested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be 
furnished with the proxy form. 

vi. The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting. 
vii. In case of corporate entity the Board of Director’s Resolution/ Power of Attorney with 

specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with 
proxy form to the Company.  
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CHAIRMAN REVIEW 

I am pleased to present the review for the year ended June 30, 2020, highlighting the 
Company's performance and role of the Board of Directors (the Board) of Gammon 
Pakistan Ltd. in guiding the management to carry out its responsibility for the benefit of all 
its stakeholders.

REVIEW OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

The board, being responsible for the management of the company, formulates all 
significant policies and strategies. The board is governed by relevant laws & regulations 
and its obligation, rights, responsibilities, and duties, as are specified and prescribed 
therein.

Due to Covid-19 pandemic one board meetings,/ one audit committee and one HR & 
Remuneration committee meeting were held during the year 2019-20. 

The board strictly monitored its own performance along with the performance of its sub-
committees. In addition to it, the board also ensured the compliance with all applicable 
rules and best practices of the Company. 

Best practices of corporate governance have been embedded into the Company's culture 
to maintain highest level of professionalism and business conduct. Risk management 
framework, effective internal controls and audit functions have been implemented to 
ensure that the day-to-day operations follow the overall strategy formulated by the Board.

Accordingly, the Board has completed its annual self-evaluation for the year 2019-20 and I 
am pleased to report that the overall performance benchmarked on the basis of criteria set 
for the year 2019-20, remained satisfactory.	
   
REVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The COVID-19 pandemic has appeared as a major event forcing the world into lock down 
and limiting the economic activity across the board. Countries around the globe have set-
up relief programs to contain the social and economic consequences of the pandemic  

Although Prime Minister's incentive and packages for construction industry specially for 
“Naya Pakistan Housing Scheme & CPEC Package III” are encouraging but your company 
is striving hard to get some direct projects at favorable rates. 

Overall economic conditions during the year 2019-20 were under great stress when 
COVID-19 compels us to lockdown and shutdown. No doubt Prime Minister's smart 
lockdown policy has preserved the economy from ultra disaster but second wave 
speculations are still affecting the economic conditions specially demand and supply factor 
across the globe.  
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We have started work at bridges of Old bannu road projects awarded to us last year and 
despite shortage of funds with client work on this project remained in full swing. The most 
difficult project of MTC is also at its closing stage. We have positive results from projects 
and capital appreciate of our investment properties have further improved the bottom line. 
Our expectations are high to get maximum gains from positive economic conditions for 
construction industry in the country.    

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to acknowledge and express my 
appreciation for our Shareholders and suppliers and contractors for their absolute 
confidence in the Board of Directors and the Company's management. I would also like to 
put on record my utmost thanks to the Board of Directors for their contribution, the 
Management and the workforce's for their efforts and hard work.

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 SAAD WAHEED

Dated :	 October 05, 2020
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Profit after taxation
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DIVIDEND:

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year due to financial constraints.

GENERAL ECONOMIC REVIEW:

The emergence of COVID-19 has caused major disruptions to the economic activities 
around the world including Pakistan. The country's economy demonstrated its worst 
performance in 68 years, posting a negative growth of 0.38% in FY 2019-20. The drop in 
domestic and global demand compounded the strain on the economy. The measures taken 
by Govt. that include monetary and fiscal policy interventions, such as interest rate 
reduction, payroll financing, announcement of stimulus package, Ehsas Program, have 
been very helpful to ensure liquidity for growth and employment. Further, the current 
account deficit narrowed down by 70%. This was due to contraction in trade deficit for the 
second consecutive year to USD 23.2 billion on the back of 19% reduction in import, Export, 
which were struggling even before, dropped to a four year low of USD 21.4 billion, down by 
6.8%. However, home remittance proved to be a silver lining as they reached an all-time 
high of USD 2.4 billion in June 2020,closing FY2020 with a total of USD 23.1 billion. These 
remittances along with other external and capital inflows helped foreign exchange reserve 
to be closed at USD 11.2 billion. Resultantly, Pak rupees remained relatively stable against 
dollor and closed at 168. With an improved inflation outlook but an increased downside risk 
to growth, SBP further reduced the policy rate to 0.7% in its most recent Monetary Policy 
Statement.      

Even before the pandemic, the industrial output was depressed on account of measures 
undertaken for macroeconomic stabilization. Cost structures of business were adversely 
affected while consumers struggled to preserve their purchasing power. During the last 
quarter, the pandemic further intensified the economic woes as every sector of the industry 
was hampered due to lockdown of business..	   

FUTURE PROSPECTS 

The economic future depends on the time it takes to reverse the adverse effects of the 
pandemic on economic activities. Resumption of CPEC and announcement of its next 
Packages along with Naya Pakistan Housing Scheme are definitely playing a positive role 
for the revival the construction industry. We are participating in various tenders of these 
projects to acquire some good works on favorable rates but have not yet succeeded.
   
Despite financial constraints our efforts are in process to get further business. It is expected 
that some more work will be awarded to your company by some clients in the near future.
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COMMENTS ON “EMPHASIS OF MATTER” PARAGRAPH IN THE AUDITOR’S REPORT:

The Company’s Board of Directors are of the opinion that the case falls within the ambit of SBP
“Incentive Scheme” for the recovery of loan defaults vide BPRD Circular no. 19 and, as such,
liable to pay only Rs.35.122 Million in full and final settelment of its outstanding liability and
provision for the same has already made in financial statement.
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INTRODUCTION. 

It has been said that the essence of a successful and visionary company is the ability to preserve its core values 
and to stimulate progress. Corporate ethics is the practice of our shared values. These shared values define 
who we are and what we can expect from each other. It is a code which applies to all Directors & Employees.

Our integrity and reputation depend on our ability to do the right thing, even when it's not the easy thing. The 
Code of Conduct is a collection of rules and policy statements intended to assist employees and directors in 
making decisions about their conduct in relation to the firm's business. The Code is based on our fundamental 
understanding that no one at Gammon Pakistan Limited should sacrifice integrity.

Each of us is accountable for our actions, and each of us is responsible for knowing and abiding by the 
policies that apply to us. Directors & Executives have a special responsibility, through example and 
communication, to ensure that employees under their supervision understand and comply with the Code and 
other relevant supporting policies and procedures.

All Directors, Executives and Employees are expected to understand the laws and business regulations 
related to their work and comply fully so that our shareholders, customers, suppliers, stakeholders and the 
Government have complete faith in the way we operate and that our business decisions are made ethically 
and in the best interest of the Company.

You can look at the Code of Conduct to guide your decisions in a variety of circumstances. However, no 
rulebook can anticipate every situation. Ultimately, the personal integrity and honesty of every GPL 
employee will define the character of our Company.  Never underestimate the importance of your own 
ethical conduct in the business and success of Gammon Pakistan Limited. 

This code is in alignment with Company's Vision and Values to achieve the Mission & Objectives and aims at 
enhancing ethical and transparent process in managing the day to day affairs of the Company.

The Board of Directors, Executives and all its employees will adopt this Code of Conduct and Ethics as a 
Testimony of commitment to adhere to the standards of loyalty, honesty, integrity and the avoidance of 
conflict of interest. 

 This model Code of Conduct shall be reviewed by the Board from time to time. The regulatory orders and 
any amendments to this Code shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION. 

In this Code, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions shall have the 
meaning given to them below:

· “The Company”   means “Gammon Pakistan Limited”

· “Board/Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

· “Directors” means the Directors of the Company appointed or elected from time to time pursuant to 
Article of Association.

· “The Chairman” means the Chairman of the Board of Directors

· “Board Members” shall mean the Members on the Board of Directors of the Company.
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· “Whole-time Directors” or “Executive Director” shall mean the Board Members who are in whole-
time employment of the Company.

· “Non-Executive Directors” shall mean the Board Members who are Directors and not in 
employment of the Company.

“Executives” shall mean employees of the Company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors and would comprise all General Managers / Functional Heads and top 
Management of the Company.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY. 

The key to corporate integrity lies with all of us. Everyone has a responsibility to up hold this dedication to 
corporate ethics on a daily basis. We all must:

· Know and follow this conduct code. 

· Know and comply with the requirements and expectations that apply to our jobs. 

· Take responsibility for our own conduct. 

· Report violations of this conduct code to appropriate management. 

This code defines following broad corporate values that shape our business practices

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

The Board of Directors of the Company should always be balance of executive, non-executive and 
independent directors in accordance with Code of Corporate Governance 2012/ Companies Ordinance 1984.

EGAL/COMPLIANCE OBLIGATIONS 

The Company's activities and operations will be carried out in strict compliance with all applicable laws and 
the highest ethical standards. Meeting our legal obligations and cooperating with, local, national and 
international authorities lay a solid foundation for the corporate values. As individuals, employees must strive 
to be aware of and understand laws applicable to business and area of responsibility.

INTEGRITY & HONESTY 

Corporate integrity and honesty is the foundation of our business conduct code. By maintaining the highest 
level or corporate integrity through open, honest, and fair dealings, we earn trust for ourselves and from 
everyone with whom we come in contact. Our employees, holding the trust of the Company, are expected to 
uphold the highest professional standards
CONFIDENTIALITY 

Every employee is obligated to protect the Company's confidential information. All information developed or 
shared as a result of the business process proprietary to the Company must be treated as confidential.

CORPORATE RECORDS 

Company documents and records are part of the Company's assets, and employees are charged with 

maintaining their accuracy and safety. Employees are required to use excellent record-management skills 

by recording information accurately and honestly, and retaining records as long as necessary to meet 

business objectives and government regulations. Financial records must accurately reflect all financial 
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transactions of the Company. No false, artificial, or misleading entries shall be made in the books and records 
of the Company for any reason.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

A conflict of interest exists when a personal interest or activity of an employee influences or interferes with 
employee's performance of duties, responsibilities or loyalties to the Company. All employees must avoid 
any personal or business influences or relationships that affect, or appear to affect, their ability to act in the 
best interest of the Company. Where ever, such conflict occurs it must be disclosed to at-least the next senior 
level of authority.

UNAUTHORIZED USE OF CORPORATE ASSETS 

Every employee is obligated to protect the assets of the Company. Company property, such as fixed assets, 
office supplies, production equipment, products, and buildings, may not be used for personal reasons. 
Expenses may not be charged to the Company unless they are for Company's purposes

RESPECT FOR PEOPLE & TEAM WORK 

We are dedicated to dignity and respect and we owe nothing less to each other. This high level of respect for 
one another enters into every aspect of our dealings with colleagues and those we come into contact with-in 
each working day, and reflects greatly on how our corporate culture is perceived. We know it well that none 
of us acting alone can achieve success.

SAFETY AND HEALTH 

We are all responsible for maintaining a safe workplace by following safety and health rules and practices. 
We are responsible for immediately reporting accidents, injuries, and unsafe equipment, practices or 
conditions to a supervisor or other designated person. We are committed to keep our workplace free from 
hazards.

DEDICATION TO QUALITY 

Our quality policy is an integral part of our business philosophy and we are committed to provide total 
customer satisfaction.
CORPORATE IMAGE 

Company's reputation and identity arc among the Company's most valuable assets. As part of keeping and 
furthering the corporate image, we believe in conducting business legally, morally and ethically, and in 
sharing the success that business brings. All employees, particularly those in management, are expected to 
conduct themselves in a manner that reflects positively on the company's image and identity, both internal 
and external. No one should act in a way, or make any statement in any media, that adversely affects the 
reputation or image of the Company with employees, customers or the community at large

STAKEHOLDERS 

Stakeholders are valuable equal partners for us with whom a long-term, fair and trustworthy relationship 
should be built and maintained with appropriate information disclosure through public relations, investor 
relations and other activities. Shareholders own the Company and on the basis of their entrustment, we 
will put in our best efforts to protect their investment value and to maximize their return under the 
prevailing business environment. Moreover, business with suppliers, vendors, contractors and other 
independent businesses who demonstrate high standards of ethical business behavior will always be 
priority for all the Directors and Executives of the Company and will not knowingly do business with 
any persons or businesses that operate in violation of applicable laws and regulations, including 
employment, 
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health, safety and environmental laws. Measures will be taken to assure that suppliers, vendors and 
contractors understand the standards applicable to our Company and we expect the same from them as well.

COMPLIANCE OF LAW. 

The Board Members and Executives shall comply with all laws, rules and regulations relating to the business 
of the Company i.e, Companies Ordinance 1984, Code of Corporate Governance, Listing Regulations and 
Article of Association etc.

DIRECTORSHIPS 

Unless specifically permitted by the Board of Directors and regulatory authorities, the Board Members and 
Executives shall not serve as Director of more than seven listed companies unless otherwise permitted by 
law, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed subsidiaries of listed holding 
companies where applicable)..

All Executives of the Company shall obtain prior approval of the Chief Executive/Managing Director of the 
Company for accepting Directorship of any other company or partnership of a firm.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Board Members and Senior Management personnel shall comply with the Code of Internal Procedures 
and conduct for prevention of insider trading in dealing with securities of the Company and the CEO and 
executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than the disclosed in the pattern of 
shareholding.

CORPORATE DISCLOSURE PRACTICES 

The Board Members and all executives shall comply with the Code of Corporate Governance in letter and 
spirit.
AUDIT FUNCTION 
The Board of Directors will ensure the transparency and independence Audit Function of the Company

RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS 

The details of all related party transactions shall be placed before the Audit Committee of the Company and 
upon recommendations of the Audit Committee the same shall be placed before the Board for review and 
approval as indicated in section 35 (x) of Code of Corporate Governance).

PROTECTION OF ASSETS 

The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel shall protect the Company's assets including 
physical assets, information and intellectual rights and shall not use the same for personal gain.

AMENDMENTS TO THE CODE 

The provisions of this Code can be amended / modified by the Board of Directors of the Company from time 
to time and all such amendments / modifications shall take effect from the date stated therein.
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1 CUIN (Incorporation Number) 0 0 0 0 1 1 7

2 Name of Company 

3 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders 3 0 0 6 2 0 2 0

FORM 34

1 Shareholding from 2560001 to 2565000shares 2,561,071

4.   No. of 

Shareholders
Shareholdings Total Share held

THE COMPANIES ACT 2017

(Section 227(2) and 449)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED 

1381 Shareholding from 1 to 100 shares 56,237
                           

508 Shareholding from 101 to 500 shares 133,498
                         

157 Shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares 127,850
                         

173 Shareholding from 1001 to 5000 shares 437,097
                         

40 Shareholding from 5001 to 10000 shares 319,262
                         

18 Shareholding from 10001 to 15000 shares 228,141
                         

10 Shareholding from 15001 to 20000 shares 170,236
                         

6 Shareholding from 20001 to 25000 shares 134,654
                         

7 Shareholding from 25001 to 30000 shares 186,598

                         
3 Shareholding from 30001 to 35000 shares 100,146

                         
2 Shareholding from 35001 to 40000 shares 74,533

                           2 Shareholding from 40001 to 45000 shares 85,719

                           1 Shareholding from 45001 to 50000 shares 47,000

                           1 Shareholding from 55001 to 60000 shares 56,378

                           2 Shareholding from 60001 to 65000 shares 122,932

                         1 Shareholding from 75001 to 80000 shares 79,535

                           2 Shareholding from 80001 to 85000 shares 165,377

                         3 Shareholding from 85001 to 90000 shares 264,509

                         1 Shareholding from 95001 to 100000 shares 98,500

                           1 Shareholding from 115001 to 120000 shares 116,500

                         1 Shareholding from 135001 to 140000 shares 138,226

                         1 Shareholding from 320001 to 325000 shares 323,803

                         1 Shareholding from 445001 to 450000 shares 447,500

                         1 Shareholding from 615001 to 620000 shares 619,000

                         
1 Shareholding from 805001 to 810000 shares 806,973

1 Shareholding from 20350001 to 20400000 shares 20,369,056                      

                         

2326 TOTAL 28,270,331
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6

7

8

9 1 4 3 0 1 - 4 5 7 5 7 6 4 - 3

10 3 0 0 6 2 0 2 0

Note:

5.   Categories of Shareholders Share held Percentage %

Directors, CEO, & their

spouses/minor children
168,996                                0.60                                     

Associated Companies/

Joint Stock Companies

undertakings and related

parties 

20,369,496
                           

72.06
                                   

Investmetn Corporation

of Pakistan 
11,450

                                 
0.04

                                     

Banks, DFIs, NBFIs,

Modarabas, etc
301

                                      

0.00

                                     

Insurance Company 60

                                        

-

                                       
Share holders holding 10 %

Bibojee Services (Pvt) Ltd 20,369,056

                           

72.06

                                   
Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 3,368,044

                             

11.92

                                   General Public 

a. Local 4,135,595

                         

14.63

                                   

b. Foreign 207,187

                                

0.73

                                     

NIC Number

Date

In case there are more than one class of shares carrying voting rights, the information

regarding each such class shall be given separately

Signature of Chief
Executive / Company
Secretary

Name of Signatory AMIN UR RASHEED

Designation Company Secretary
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS 

1
M/S BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LIMITED 

2 DIRECTORS, CEO & THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN:
SAAD WAHEED 
MUHAMMAD SALAHUDDIN 
MR. FAZAL UR REHMAN KHAN BURKI
MR. A. KARIM KHAN 
MR. KAMAL ABDULLAH
*MR. KHALID KULI KHAN KHATTAK 
*MUHAMMAD KULI KHAN KHATTAK 
*MR. SIKANDAR KULI KHAN KHATTAK 

* Directors on behalf of Bibojee Services (Pvt) Limited 

3 EXECUTIVES 

4 JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 

5 N..I.T. & I.C.P
M/S INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 
KARACHI INVESTMENT TRUST LIMITED 

6 BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING
FINANCE, INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE COMPANIES, MODARBAS
& MUTUAL FUNDS

7 INSURANCE COMPANY

8 FOREIGN SHAREHOLDERS

9 GENERAL PUBLIC AND OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

10 SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE:
M/S BIBOJEE SERVICES (PVT) LIMTIED 
MR. AHMED KULI KHAN KHATTAK

20,369,056
  

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER

REQUIREMENTS OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

SHARE HELD

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES UNDERTAINGS & RELATED PARTIES:

11,450

         

100
              138,026
       100

                30,670

         100

                -

                 -

                 -

                 

NIL

20,374,598

  

3,368,044

    

301

              60

                207,187

       4,135,595

    
20,369,056
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
	 	 	 	 	 Regulations, 2019
NAME OF COMPANY:	 GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED (THE COMPANY)

thYear Ended:	 	 	 30  June 2020

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Regulations, in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: 7
b. Female: Nil

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

 
Independent Directors   
  

 

 
Mr. Fazal ur Rehman Khan Burki  

Mr. Kamal Abdullah  

 
 
Other non -Executive Directors  
  

 

 
Mr. Saad Waheed  
Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak  
Mr. Mohammad Kuli Khan Khattak  

Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak  
Mr. Abdul Kareem Khan  
 

 
Executive Director  

 

 
  NIL 

 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven  

listed companies, including this company .  
 

4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 

procedures.  
 

5. The Board has developed a vision /mission  statement, overall corporate strategy and 

significant policies of the Company. The board has ensured that complete record of particulars  
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 
to the committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per 
following:

a) Audit Committee	 	 	 	 	 Quarterly 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee		  Yearly 

15. The Board has setup an effective internal audit function, which is considered suitably qualied 
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
Company. 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have conrmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their 
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on 
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the rm involved in audit 
are not a close relative (Spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief 
executive ofcer, chief nancial ofcer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the 
company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have conrmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard.

18. We conrm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 & 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with.

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak		 	 	 	 Mohammad Salahuddin
Director	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Chief Executive Ofcer

32



33



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED (the Company), which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 

knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 

financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 

Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the 

changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw your attention to Note 27.2(a) to the financial statements whereby the 

National Bank of Pakistan has filed an execution applications for the decrees for amounts mentioned in the 

aforesaid note. The liability determined of the Company is contingent upon the judgment of these suits.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated 

in our report.
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S. No Key audit matters  
How the matter was addressed in our 
audit 

1. Control environment relating to the financial reporting process and related IT systems  

 The IT control environment relating to the 
financial reporting process and the 

application controls of individual IT systems 

have an impact on the selected audit 
approach.  

 

As the financial statements are based on 
extensive number of data flows from 

multiple IT systems, consequently the 

financial reporting c ontrol environment is 
determined as a key audit matter.  

Our audit procedures included evaluation of 
the financial reporting process and related 

control environment, as well as testing of 

the effectiveness of controls including 
general IT controls. Our audi t procedures 

focused on testing the reconciliation and 

approval controls as well as on evaluating 
the administration of access rights.  

 

Our audit procedures extensively consisted 
of several substantive procedures as well as 

data analysis relating to the mo st significant 
balances on the profit and loss account and 

statement of financial position.  

2. Revenue Recognition  

 The Company focuses on revenue as a key 

performance measure which could create 

an incentive for revenue to be recognized 

before the risks and rewards have been 

transferred, resulting in a significant risk 

associated with revenue from an audit 

procedure.                   

Due to the significant risk associated with 

revenue recognition and the work effort 

from the audit team, the recognition of 

revenue is considered to be a key audit 

matter.    

Refer to note 5.17 of the financial 

statements  

 

Our audit procedu res included considering 

the appropriateness of the Company’s 

revenue recognition accounting policies and 
assessing compliance with the policies in 

accordance with the applicable financial 

reporting framework.  
 

· Control testing over the point of 

transfer of  risk and rewards was 
supported by substantive audit 

procedures including, amongst others:  
 

· Performing analytical tests on the 

revenue.  
 

· Testing a sample of sales transactions 

around year end to ensure inclusion in 

the correct Period  
 

Testing of a sample o f sales and trade 
receivables at year end by agreeing a 

sample of open invoices at year end to 

subsequent receipts from customers.  
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Due to the COVID -19 situation and lockdown 

in

 

the Pakistan since March 2020.

 

Business activity has been adversely affected. 

were closed 

that resulted in a decline in the Company’s 

The Company factory and offices  

 

This affected the overall audit strategy

In relation to the accounting and reporting 

obligations,

 

the management assessed the 

following significant areas for incorporating 
 

COVID -19 impact in the financial statements
  

·

 

expected credit losses (ECL) under IFRS 

9,

 

Financial Instruments’

 

·

 

Going concern assumption used for the 

preparation of the financial statements.

 

Refer to note 48

 

of the financial statements

 

 

 

Our audit procedures included evaluation of 
the impact of COVID-19 on the company and 

its financial statements.

 

 

·

 

Obtained an overall understanding of 

 

the changes in financial reporting 

 

process and underlying controls in order 

to determine the

 

audit strategy.

 

appropriate audit strategy.

April 2020.  revenue from March 2020 to  

·

 

For record provided by the

 

management,

  

subsequently when the

 

lockdown was 
relaxed; 

checked the original records were  

 

·

 

Assessed the reasonableness of forward -

looking

 

factors under the COVID-19 

situation used by management in 

preparing ECL model

 

 

·

 

Evaluated management’s going concern

 

assessment by reviewing the approved 

future cash flow forecast and assessed 
whether

 

going concern assumption is 

appropriate.

 

 

4.

 

Contingencies

 

 
During early 80’s, the Company obtained 

two loans of Saudi Riyals 5 million and Saudi 
Riyals 2.5 million aggregating to Saudi Riyals 

7.5 million (equivalent to Pak Rs. 207.750 

million at the rate of Rs. 27.7/ SR) through 
consortium of banks

 
led by National Bank of 

Pakistan (NBP) during 1986. Recovery 

proceedings of the loans of SR 7.5 million 
with the interest thereon of SR 21.650 

million (equivalent to Rs. 599.705 million at 

the rate of Rs. 27.7/ SR) are being contested 

in the Sindh High Court.  
 

 

Due to nature of the contingency, we 
considered it to be a key audit matter.  

 

Our audit procedures in respect of this area 

included:
 

 

·
 

We obtained confirmations from legal 

advisors for current status
 

on pending 
previous cases and any new case filed 

during the year;
 

 

·
 

Checked orders by relevant authority on 

previous lawsuits / cases appearing in 

the financial statements . 
 

 

S. No

 

Key audit matters

 
How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

 

3.  Impact  of COVID 19  
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Refer to note 27.2(a) to the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 

2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

37



38



39



      
                                          

GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

 2020 2019
Note  Rupees Rupees

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 6  288,573,865 266,279,731

      Investment property 7  445,280,201 392,937,135
      Long term investments 8  1,300,413 1,300,413
          Long term security deposits 9  1,861,203 1,861,203

           737,015,682 662,378,482

      CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 10  25,472,319 28,580,718

        Contract receivables 11  83,383,124 90,733,413

        
Contract asset 12  137,143,518 93,047,642

        
Loans and advances 13  22,236,403 22,440,793

        
Other receivables 14  1,934,007 3,270,046

          
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 15  318,761 319,723

             
Tax refunds due from Government 16  84,706,316 87,751,028

        
Taxation - net 17  305,033 -

                     
Cash and bank balances 18  1,204,501 1,885,836

          

 356,703,982 328,029,199

      

TOTAL ASSETS  1,093,719,664 990,407,681

      
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 19  282,662,310 282,662,310

      

Capital reserves
Share premium reserve  15,380,330 15,380,330

        

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 20  412,774,639 388,777,707

      

 428,154,969 404,158,037

      

Revenue reserve
Accumulated profit  74,960,044 45,799,813

        

 785,777,323 732,620,160

      

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liability 21  8,724,735 9,208,876

          

Deferred taxation 22  30,057,055 18,236,325

        

 38,781,790 27,445,201

        

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23  208,571,578 180,795,836

      

Unclaimed dividends 24  1,442,230 1,442,230

          

Contract liability 12  29,087,201 -

                     

Joint venture partner's advances 25  30,059,542 30,059,542

        

Mobilization advance 26 -

                     

15,000,000

        

Taxation - net 17 - 3,044,712
 269,160,551 230,342,320

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,093,719,664 990,407,681

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27 - -

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

 2020 2019
Note  Rupees Rupees

Contract income 28  184,639,178 201,388,164    
Contract expenditure 29  (173,514,623) (179,381,701)  
Net contract profit  11,124,555 22,006,463      
Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses 30  (37,561,779) (40,943,825)    
Other operating expenses 31  (620,000) (553,000)         

 (38,181,779) (41,496,825)    
Other income 32  20,684,464 22,125,544      
Operating profit  (6,372,760) 2,635,182        
Finance cost 33  (24,230) (15,291)           

34  52,343,065 52,760,204      
Profit before taxation  45,946,075 55,380,095      
Taxation 35  (19,634,021) (14,975,621)    
Profit after taxation  26,312,054 40,404,474      

Earnings per share:
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 36  0.93  1.43 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                      CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                       DIRECTOR

Fair value gain on investment property
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation 26,312,054        40,404,474        

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 26,179,815        124,931,830      

Related deferred tax impact (282,318)            (2,382,298)         

25,897,497        122,549,532      

Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit liability 947,612             (238,927)            

Total other comprehensive income for the year 26,845,109        122,310,605      

Total comprehensive income for the year 53,157,163        162,715,079      

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                         DIRECTOR
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before working capital changes 38  17,593,004  19,785,517 
Changes in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools  3,108,399  1,154,663 
Contract receivables  (11,676,674)  14,684,431 
Contract asset  (44,095,876)  (39,714,188)
Loans and advances  204,390  (6,742,570)
Other receivables  1,336,039  (3,205,579)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments  962  (32,539)
Long term security deposits -                  (900,000)

 Increase / (decrease)  in current liabilities
Trade and other payables  27,775,742  4,543,895 
Contract liability  29,087,201 -                
Mobilization advance  (15,000,000)  15,000,000 

 (9,259,817)  (15,211,887)
Cash generated from operations  8,333,187  4,573,630 

Financial charges paid 33  (24,230)  (15,291)
Income tax paid 17  (8,400,642)  (6,369,904)
Gratuity paid 21.6  (572,650)  (568,775)

 (8,997,522)  (6,953,970)
Net cash used in operating activities  (664,335)  (2,380,340)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets 6  (17,000) -                
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                  115,599 

Net cash generated (used in) / from investing activities  (17,000)  115,599 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (681,335)  (2,264,741)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,885,836  4,150,577 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18  1,204,501  1,885,836 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                     CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                      DIRECTOR
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1 CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1 Legal status and operations 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

2.2 Basis of measurement

The Company was incorporated under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies

Act, 2017) on August 12, 1947 as a Public Company Limited by shares. It's shares are quoted

on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited, Lahore

Stock Exchange Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited). 

The principal activity of the Company is execution of civil construction works.

The Company is a subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Private) Limited (the holding company), a

private company incorporated in Pakistan.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Gammon House, 400/2 Peshawar Road,

Rawalpindi.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for

cash flow information.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of:

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the

IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been

followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for

certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount, investment properties which

have been stated at fair value, recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value

and certain other items as disclosed in relevant accounting policies.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Key judgments and estimates

-

- Fair value of investment property - Note 5.2 & 7

-

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation - Note 5.16 & 21

- Estimate of revenue and cost - Note 5.17

- Impairment of financial instruments based upon expected credit loss model - Note 5.19

- Estimation of provisions - Note 5.21 

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 5.22

-

3

These financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and

presentation currency of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In

addition, it requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the

Company‟s accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity,

or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are

documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to:

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method and revalued amounts of property,

plant and equipment - Note 5.1 & 6

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 'Leases' was issued on January 01, 2016. This standard is adopted locally by the

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after January 1, 2019. IFRS 16 replaced IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease' The Company applied IFRS 16 from date of July 01,

2019.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset -

Note 5.15, 22 & 35 

Allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on contract receivables and loans and advances - 

Note 5.6, 5.7, 11 & 13

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and

liabilities for all leases, together with options to exclude leases where the lease term is 12

months or less, or where the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use

asset representing its right of using the underlying asset and a corresponding lease liability

representing its obligation to make lease payments. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the

lessor accounting in IAS 17, with the distinction between operating leases and finance leases

being retained. The Company does not have significant leasing activities acting as a lessee.

However, the Company has lease contracts acting  as a lessor on its investment properties.
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4

4.1

IFRS 9

January 01, 2019

IFRS 16 Leases - Original issue January 01, 2019

IAS 19

January 01, 2019

IAS 28

January 01, 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 – 2017) Cycle:

IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

4.2 Amendments that are effective in current year and not relevant to the Company

Effective date       

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO

PUBLISHED APPROVED STANDARDS

The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below

against the respective standard:

Standards / amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Company

IFRS 16 provides with a choice between two transition approaches i.e, full retrospective

approach and modified retrospective approach. The Company has adopted the modified

retrospective approach. There is no significant impact of adoption of IFRS 16 on accounting

and financial reporting policies of the Company except certain additional disclosures

requirements which have been provided in respective notes to these financial statements. 

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments

regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan

amendments, curtailments or settlements

Financial Instruments - amendments regarding prepayment

features with negative compensation and modifications of

financial liabilities 

The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below

against the respective standard:

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual

improvements made to IFRS that became effective during the year:
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IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue July 01, 2019

IAS 28

January 01, 2019

IFRS 8

January 01, 2019

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 – 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations. January 01, 2019

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. January 01, 2019

4.3 Amendments not yet effective

January 01, 2020

IFRS 3

January 01, 2020

IFRS 3

January 01, 2022

IFRS 4

January 01, 2023

IFRS 7

January 01, 2020

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments

regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Effective date       

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

Operating Segments - Amendments regarding prepayment

features with negative compensation and modifications of

financial liabilities

Effective date       

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan

would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS

34, IAS 37, IAS 38,IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-

32 to update these pronouncements with regard to references to and

quotes from the framework or to indicate where they refer to different

version of the Conceptual Framework.

Business Combinations - amendments to clarify the definition

of a business

Business Combinations - amendments updating a reference to

the Conceptual Framework

Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the expiry date

of the deferral approach

Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding

pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
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IFRS 9

January 01, 2020

IFRS 9

January 01, 2023

IFRS 16

January 01, 2020

IFRS 17

January 01, 2023

IAS 1

January 01, 2020

IAS 1

January 01, 2022

IAS 8 

January 01, 2020

IAS 16

January 01, 2022

IAS 37

January 01, 2022

IAS 39

January 01, 2020

Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments regarding

the definition of materiality

Effective date       

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments

regarding the classification of liabilities

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors - amendments regarding the definition of materiality

Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a

company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and

equipment amounts received from selling items produced

while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets -

Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing

whether a contract is onerous

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -

Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context

of the IBOR reform

The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against

respective standards:

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding pre-

replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding the

interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9

Leases - Amendment to provide lessees with an exemption

from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession

is a lease modification

Insurance Contracts - Amendments to address concerns and

implementation challenges that were identified after IFRS 17

was published 



Annual improvements to IFRSs (2018 – 2020) Cycle:

IFRS 1

January 01, 2022

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 01, 2022

IAS 41 January 01, 2020

4.4 Standards or interpretations not yet effective

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

Subsequent measurement

Agriculture

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 

Standards

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

The Company expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the

standards will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Company's

unconsolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are

set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated

depreciation and any identified impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated

at revalued amount. 

Effective date       

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)
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Depreciation

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Disposal

Judgment and estimates

5.2 Investment properties

Recognition and measurement

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery

is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity

as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses

a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case

the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any

decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and

machinery is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the

revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that

asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company‟s shareholders.

The surplus on revaluation buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of incremental

depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset

and is recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss. In case of the sale or

retirement of a revalued items, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on

revaluation of such item is transferred directly to the unappropriated profit. 

Investment properties represent the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including transaction 

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and

losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight-line basis on the cost or valuation

of all fixed assets from / to the date of acquisition / deletion, except for freehold land, to write-

off ninety percent of the value over the useful life of the assets. The remaining ten percent is

written-off on retirement is considered the residual value.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The

Company revalues its operating fixed assets on regular basis. The effect of any changes in

estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Derecognition

Leases

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets

other than stores and spares and stock in trade and deferred tax assets may be impaired. If such

an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the

extent of impairment loss, if any. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable

amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss

is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account, unless the asset is carried at revalued

amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property following

a change in its use and differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of

the item immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation

of property, plant and equipment if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item related surplus on

revaluation of property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss

arising in this manner is recognized immediately in the income statement.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, unless

the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated

as a revaluation decrease. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the reversal

immediately in the statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in

accordance with the revaluation model. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset

is treated as a revaluation increase.

The assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an indication

of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and compared with its

carrying amount. 

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in profit or loss

in the period in which the property is derecognized.

With regard to activities as a lessor, the Company has entered into commercial property leases

on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of

the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major

part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property,

that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties

and accounts for the contracts as operating leases. Rental income from investment property that

is leased to a third party under an operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in „other income‟ under note 32.
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5.4 Investments at amortized cost

5.5 Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools

Measurement

Impairment

Judgments and estimates

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and

selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market

conditions. A review is made periodically on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence

and decline in net realizable value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances

for any such decline.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets

other than stores and spares and stock in trade and deferred tax assets may be impaired. If such

an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the

extent of impairment loss, if any. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable

amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss

is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account, unless the asset is carried at revalued

amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

These are carried at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any. Investments with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturity where management has both the positive intent and

ability to hold to maturity are classified at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gain and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account when the investments are

derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory is impaired, the

carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment

loss is recognised immediately in the cost of sales in the statement of profit or loss.

Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools is valued at the lower of cost and net

realizable value. 

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and comprises direct materials, direct

labour costs and direct overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business

less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to

make the sale.

Cost of materials is determined using the first-in-first out method.

Cost of stores, spares and loose tools is determined using the weighted average method.
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5.6 Contract receivables

Measurement

Judgments and estimates

5.7 Loans and advances

Judgments and estimates

5.8 Other receivables

5.9 Cash and cash equivalents 

A provision for impairment of advances is established when there is objective evidence that the

Company will not be able to adjust all advances according to the original terms of the advances. 

The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The allowance for expected credit of the Company is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9

and management‟s continuous evaluation of the realisability of the advances.

Other receivables are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value of the consideration to

be received in future.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statements at cost. For the purposes of

cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and bank balances.

Contract receivables are measured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for

doubtful receivable balance at the year-end.

A provision for impairment of contract receivables is established when there is objective

evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original

terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss. Bad debts are written-off in the statement of profit or loss on identification.

These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful advances, if any.

The allowance for expected credit of the Company is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9

and management‟s continuous evaluation of the recoverability of the outstanding contract

receivables. In assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, management considers,

among other factors, the creditworthiness, past collection history of each customer along with

future indications and macro-economic factors of the industry, economy and country.
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5.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

5.11 Trade and other payables

5.12 Dividend distribution

5.13 Joint venture partner's advances (including share of accrued profit)

5.14 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5.15 Taxation

Current

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it

relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), in

which case the tax amounts are recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income on current rates of taxation after

taking into account the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or one and half percent of

turnover and corporate tax as per section 113c, whichever is higher in accordance with the

provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Creditors relating to trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to

the Company.

Profit / loss on advances obtained from a joint venture partner is recognized on 'accrual basis' in

accordance with the agreed percentage. 

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are

recognized in the period in which these are approved.

Dividend distribution to the Company‟s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in

which the dividends are approved by the company‟s shareholders.

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly attributable to

the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the

cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.

The Company recognizes tax liabilities for pending tax assessments using estimates based on

expert opinion obtained from tax/legal advisors. Differences, if any, between the income tax

provision and the tax liability finally determined is recorded when such liability is so

determined. 
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Deferred

Judgment and estimates

Off-setting

5.16 Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

5.17 Revenue recognition

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all

temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred

tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax

assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be

utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted.

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding

provision for tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax

determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the

same tax authority.

The Company measures defined benefit liabilities (assets) at the present value of its obligation

under defined benefit plan at the reporting date minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan

assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The obligation under defined

benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the period in

which they occur. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or

loss.

Revenue is recognized overtime as per IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" on

the basis of input method on the execution of contract activities where the outcome of the

construction contract can be estimated reliably as measured by the proportion that contract

work performed to date bears to the estimated total contract work. Variable consideration due

to contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been

agreed with the customer.

In determining the liability for long-service payments management must make an estimate of

salary increases over the following five years, the discount rate to calculate present value over

next five years, and the number of employees expected to leave before they receive the benefits. 
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Contract revenue and cost

5.18 Foreign currency transactions

5.19 Financial Instruments

5.19.1 Financial assets

Amortized cost

-

-

Impairment

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is

not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

-Revenue from rental income is recognized on 'accrual basis'. 

-Interest income is also recognized on 'accrual basis'.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the

dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. All

exchange differences are charged to profit and loss account.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through

profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the

financial assets of the Company as at statement of financial position date are carried at

amortized cost.

Input method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the current

estimates of total contract revenue and total contract costs. Any change in these estimates will

affect the contract revenue and contract costs accordingly. 

Where the outcome of the construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue

is recognized to the extent of the contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable.

Contract costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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5.19.2 Financial liabilities

5.19.3 Recognition and measurement 

5.19.4 Derecognition

5.20 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

5.21 Provisions

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular

measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated

with each item. 

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial

statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and

the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be

made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current

estimate.

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual right

that comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are

extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off

when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety

or a portion thereof. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.
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5.22 Contingent liabilities

5.23 Contract asset / liability

5.24 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Company‟s other components. The Company has only one

reportable segment. 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as

a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to

settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding

of the discount is recognised as finance cost in the statement of profit or loss. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that

reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of

past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

The Company recognizes contract asset against the cost incurred and estimated earning which

is in excess of the amount billed to the customer to date. The Company recognizes the contract

liability against the amount billed to the customer which is in excess of the cost incurred and

estimated earning of the contract to date.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,

regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many

years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously

recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was

originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.
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5.25 Joint ventures and joint operations.

5.26 Earnings per share

5.27 Related party transactions

 

The Company's share in transactions and balances related to joint operations, in which the

Company has a working interest, are combined on a line by line basis with similar items in the

Company's financial statements. While equity method accounting is used for joint ventures.

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is

determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at

arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party

transactions using valuation modes as admissible.
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6.1

 Covered Area

(In sq.ft) 

7,056                  

4,004
                  

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

6.2 Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

Contract expenditure 29 1,905,888
           

1,615,372
           General and administrative expenses 30 1,996,793

           
1,623,520

           3,902,681
           

3,238,892
           

6.3

6.4

Independent valuers Revaluation dates

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2020

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2019

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2017

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2016

M/s Ideal Group of Consultant, Larkana June 20, 2013 and June 30, 2013
M/s Engineering Pakistan International (Pvt.) Ltd. June 30, 2009

M/s Hamid Mukhtar & Co. March 30, 2008

Independent valuer June 30, 2006

Independent valuer July 01, 1992

Independent valuer March 31, 1977

6.5

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not

available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies

Act, 2017.

This represents surplus on book values resulted from revaluations of operating fixed assets

based on fair value / market value estimated by independent valuers adjusted only by surplus

realized on disposal of revalued assets and incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation

and treated. Revaluation of land and buildings was based upon fair market value and valuation

for other operating assets was conducted during 2019 which was based upon depreciated

replacement costs to reflect the residual service potential of the assets taking account of age,

condition and obsolescence. Details of revaluation are as follows:

Free hold land of the Company is located at Chakbeli road near Rawat and Peshawar road

District Rawalpindi, Punjab, Pakistan with an area of 50.9 kanal and 5.1 kanal respectively.

Details of workshop and residential buildings of the company constructed on this land are as

follows:

Location Particulars

Mouza Harka, Main Chakbeli Road, Tehsil and

District Rawalpindi

Mouza Chuhr Harpal, Near Chuhr Chowk,

Main Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi Cantt.

Stores and godowns for 

stores and spares.

Gammon house Head 

office

The forced sale value of the revalued freehold land and buildings at date of statement of

financial position has been assessed at Rs. 228,703,680.
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6.6

2020
Rupees

Freehold land                120,988 

Buildings on freehold land             3,365,351 

Plant and machinery             2,153,502 

Furniture and fixture             1,023,662 
Computers and accessories                534,086 
Motor vehicles, cycles and boats                959,706 
Construction equipment                184,016 

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

7

Carrying amount as at July 1,

Rural land 7.1 110,092,701
       

104,850,000
       Gammon House - land and building 7.2 335,187,500

       
288,087,135

       445,280,201
       

392,937,135
       The movement in this account is as follows:

Opening balance 392,937,135
       

340,176,931
       

7.3 
Carrying amount as at June 30 445,280,200

       
392,937,135

       
7.1

7.2

7.3

There are no non-cancellable fixed rate operating leases over the Company’s investment

property, land and buildings. 

Forced sale value of the investment property at date of statement of financial position is

assessed at Rs. 373,716,320

In 2013, management purchased and installed two billboards at Gammon House which had

been treated as additions to investment properties.

Net fair value gain on revaluation shown in 

profit and loss account 52,343,065
         

52,760,204
         

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

This represents investment in 209.70 kanals open land located at Mouza Haraka, Rawalpindi.

This investment, effective from the financial year ended June 30, 2007, is being classified as

'investment property' as the Company decided to hold this property for capital appreciation.

The Company has adopted fair value model for valuation.

This represents Gammon House (Head office of the Company) which is held to earn rentals and 

for capital appreciation and shown under the head "Investment property". The Company has

adopted fair value model for valuation.

The Company, as at June 30, 2020, revalued all of its investment property. The revaluation

exercise was carried out by an independent valuer, Impulse (Private) Limited, and the

revaluation resulted in Rs. 51.085 million (2019: Rs. 52.760 million) net adjustment to fair

value.

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets

would have been as follows:
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2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

8 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortized cost:
Defense Savings Certificates 8.1 500,000              500,000              
Accrued interest 8.2 800,413              800,413              

1,300,413
           

1,300,413
           

8.1

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

8.2 Accrued interest

Opening 800,413

              

800,413

              Accrued during the year -

                      

-

                      800,413

              

800,413

              9 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Tender money deposit 353,928

              

353,928

              Others 9.1 1,507,275

           

1,507,275

           
1,861,203

           

1,861,203

           
9.1 Other deposits comprises of amounts as follows:

WAPDA 25,600

                

25,600

                
Main Power Division 100,000

              

100,000

              
Sui Northern Gas Limited 52,675

                

52,675

                
Sindh High Court 120,000

              

120,000

              
Al Emran International 300,000

              

300,000

              
Masha Allah Estate 4,000

                  

4,000

                  
Student Inn Boys Hostel 5,000

                  

5,000

                  
Frontier Works Organization 900,000

              

900,000

              
1,507,275

           

1,507,275

           9.2 Long term security deposits represent deposits against receipt of non-financial services.

These are carried at nominal value as effect by amortization is not material in respect of

these financial statements.

This represents one certificate (2019: one) having face value of Rs. 500,000, having a maturity

period of 10 years i.e. February 2017 carrying markup (effective rate) at 10.03 % per annum.

The Company has deposited the certificate as a security, and is pledged in favour of Director of

Works and Chief Engineer, Pakistan Navy, Islamabad for provisional enlistment against

construction of sailors' barracks at PNS Qasim, Manora, Karachi. The Defense Saving

Certificate was matured during the 2017, however, will be reinvested on release of the pledged

certificate subsequently.
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Note Rupees Rupees

10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Consumable materials 861,355              774,321              
Stores 10.1 23,811,521         26,978,285         
Spares 578,826

              
578,826

              
Loose tools 20,575

                
20,575

                
Other stocks 200,042

              
228,711

              
25,472,319
         

28,580,718
         

10.1

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

11 CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

Owned

Unsecured - considered good
Against billings

- work-in-progress  44,108,286 32,549,572

         
- completed contracts  56,123,425 55,236,179

         
 100,231,711 87,785,751

         
Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (75,150,387) (56,123,425)

        
 25,081,324 31,662,326

         
Against retention money

- work-in-progress  60,212,492 63,292,689

         

- completed contracts  35,793,797 33,482,887

         

 96,006,289 96,775,576

         

Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (37,704,489) (37,704,489)

        

 58,301,800 59,071,087

         

Joint venture

- against billings  17,054,553 17,054,553

         

- against retention money  12,936,380 12,936,380

         

 29,990,933 29,990,933

         

Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (29,990,933) (29,990,933)

        

-

                      

-

                      

 83,383,124 90,733,413

         
11.1

2020 2019

Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not

distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting

in capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.

Management, in the prior years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding receivable

balances comprising of progress billings and retention money which are not likely to be

received due to various reasons. Similarly, during the year, management carried out the ECL

assessment and identified provision for expected credit loss as follows:
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Note Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 123,818,847       110,663,242       
Charge during the year 19,026,962         13,155,605         
Closing balance 142,845,809       123,818,847       

12

Under the following captions:

Contract asset on incomplete projects 137,143,518
       

93,047,642
         

Contract liability on incomplete projects (29,087,201)
        

-
                      

Net contract asset 12.1 108,056,317
       

93,047,642
         

12.1 This comprises as follows:

Cost incurred on incomplete projects (Including prior year cost) 1,746,258,405
    

1,651,804,199
    Estimated earnings 262,365,266

       
226,235,595
       2,008,623,671

    
1,878,039,794

    Billings to date (1,900,567,354)
   

(1,784,992,152)
   108,056,317

       
93,047,642

         

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured - considered good

To employees / project managers 2,342,695

           

2,376,814

           To suppliers 15,044,623

         

15,827,016

         To sub - contractors 4,849,085

           

4,236,963

           22,236,403

         

22,440,793

         Doubtful advances 17,632,952

         

17,632,952

         39,869,355

         

40,073,745

         Provision for expected credit loss 13.1 (17,632,952)

        

(17,632,952)

        22,236,403

         

22,440,793

         
Due from joint venture partners 932,586

              

932,586

              
Provision for expected credit loss 13.1 (932,586)

             

(932,586)

             
-

                      

-

                      
22,236,403

         

22,440,793

         
13.1 Management, in the previous years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding

receivable balances comprising of advances to staff and suppliers, which are not likely to be

received due to various reasons. Similarly during the year, management carried out the

assessment and identified provision for expected credit losses as follows:

CONTRACT ASSET

2020 2019

(Including prior year billing)
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2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 18,565,538         15,948,313         

Charge during the year -                      2,617,225           
Closing balance 18,565,538         18,565,538         

14 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured:
- Considered good

Other receivables 14.1 1,934,007           3,270,046           

14.1

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Bannu Woolen Mills 1,335,440           2,990,000           

14.2 Aging of receivable from related parties:

1-90 days 712,720              1,260,000           

90-180 days 612,720              1,260,000           
Over 180 days 10,000                470,000              

1,335,440           2,990,000           

14.3 Maximum balance due from related party at end of any month during the year is Rs. 1,335,440 

(2019: 2,990,000).

This represents receivables in respect of rental income. This includes receivables from related

parties as follows:
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2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

15

Prepaid insurance 287,703           288,665           

Prepayments 31,058             31,058             
318,761           319,723           

16 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 

Considered good 

Balance as at July 01, 87,751,028      82,591,116      

Refundable assessed during the year (3,044,712)       5,159,912        
84,706,316      87,751,028      

17 TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01, (3,044,712)       5,159,912        

Transferred to tax refunds due from Government 3,044,712        (5,159,912)       
-                   -                   

Prior year adjustment (284,776)          -                   

Provision for taxation (7,810,833)       (9,414,616)       
Advance income tax 8,400,642        6,369,904        

305,033           (3,044,712)       

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 45,633             78,529             

Cash at bank: local currency

- Current accounts 13,171             55,926             
- Savings accounts 18.1 256,254           21,938             

- Deposit accounts 18.2 889,443           1,729,443        

1,158,868        1,807,307        
1,204,501        1,885,836        

18.1

18.2

PLS accounts, during the current financial year, carried profit at the rates ranging from 6.5% to

11.25% (2019: 3% to 8.5%) per annum.

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM

PREPAYMENTS

The balance upto Rs. 800,000 as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 is under a bank's lien

against guarantees issued by the bank.

68



2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

19 SHARE CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2019

 22,627,320  226,273,200  226,273,200 

 2,562,845  25,628,450  25,628,450 

 30,760,660  30,760,660 
 28,266,231 19.1  282,662,310  282,662,310 

19.1

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited - Parent Company

19.2  203,690,560  203,690,560 

Directors and their spouses / minor children

 958,550  958,550 
 204,649,110  204,649,110 

19.2

19.3

19.4 Authorized share capital:

95,855 (2019: 95,855) ordinary shares 

of Rs 10 each

The parent company Bibojee Services (Private) Limited held 72.06% shares

(2019:  72.06% shares) in Gammon Pakistan Limited as at June 30, 2020.

This represents 30,000,000 (2019: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to

Rs. 300,000,000 (2019: Rs. 300,000,000).

 3,076,066  3,076,066 

Issued against 

conversion of loans
 28,266,231 

This includes shares held by related 

parties as follows:

20,369,056 (2019: 20,369,056) ordinary 

shares of Rs 10 each

All ordinary shareholders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first

refusal and block voting.

 2,562,845 

Issued as fully paid 

bonus shares

Number of ordinary
 shares of Rs.10/- each 

2020

 22,627,320 Fully paid in cash
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20

 2020 2019
 Rupees Rupees

Balance brought forward  400,685,175 278,401,119
      Add: Revaluations during the year  26,179,815 124,931,830
      

Less:

 1,900,565 1,788,410

          
-

                    

91,510

               
 776,287 767,854

             
 2,676,852 2,647,774

          
 424,188,138 400,685,175

      
Less: Related deferred tax effect :

Opening balance - as previously reported  11,907,468 10,293,024

        

Revaluation during the year  282,318 2,382,298

          

Adjustment on account of disposal -

                    

(37,377)

               (776,287) (730,477)

            

 11,413,499 11,907,468

        

 412,774,639 388,777,707

      

21 DEFERRED LIABILITY

21.1 Gratuity

The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:

21.2 The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme. The scheme provides for terminal benefits

for all its permanent employees whose period of service exceeds six months. Employees are

entitled to gratuity on the basis of one gross salary for each completed one year of service after the

minimum qualifying period. Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out as at June

30, 2020 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Final salary risk: The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than

what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit

amount would also increase proportionately.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is restated and now presented as a

separate capital reserve in the financial statements.

Transferred to equity in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of

deferred tax
Realized on disposal of revalued assets - net of

deferred tax
Related deferred tax liability during the year

transferred to profit and loss account

Incremental depreciation charged during the

year transferred to profit and loss account

70



 2020 2019

Note  Rupees Rupees

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 21.3  5,532,839 5,959,980          
Benefits due but not paid during the year  3,191,896 3,248,896          

21.6  8,724,735 9,208,876          

21.3 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

Present value of defined benefit obligations  5,959,980 5,459,690          
Benefits due but not paid as at June 30,  3,248,896 3,318,096          
Service cost  326,914 346,914

             
Interest on defined benefit obligations  709,207 414,024

             
Benefit due but not paid at the year end  (3,191,896) (3,248,896)

         
Acturial (gain) / loss  (947,612) 238,927

             
Benefits paid during the year  (572,650) (568,775)

            
 5,532,839 5,959,980

          

21.4

Change in demographic assumptions -
                    

-
                     Change in financial assumptions -

                    
-

                     Acturial (gain) / loss due to experience adjustment  (947,612) 238,927

              (947,612) 238,927

             
21.5

Current service costs  326,914 346,914

             Interest cost  709,207 414,024

              1,036,121 760,938

             
21.6 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 2020 2019

 Rupees Rupees

Opening defined benefit obligation  9,208,876 8,777,786

          
Service cost  326,914 346,914

             
Interest cost  709,207 414,024

             
Actuarial (gains) / losses  (947,612) 238,927

             
Benefits paid  (572,650) (568,775)

            
 8,724,735 9,208,876

         

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on defined obligation 

due to:

Remeasurement chargeable to statement of other 

comprehensive income

The amounts recognised in the statement of profit or 

loss:
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21.7

Discount rate as at June 30, 2020 8.50%

Future salary increases                         7.50%

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement                                           

Inflation rate                                                                                                     12.00%

Mortality rate SLIC (2001-5) Mortality table

Average expected remaining working lifetime of members 7 Years

Average duration of liability 6 years

21.8 Comparison of five years

21.9

21.10

21.11 Sensitivity analysis

The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Discount rate  5,214,939 5,887,740

          

Salary increase  5,887,740 5,209,292

          
21.12 Expected future payments

 Rupees 

Within one year  635,267 

More than one year but less than five years  2,805,802 

Above five years  1,235,267 
4,676,336

          

The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2021 is estimated to be

Rs. 886,771.

 ------------ Rupees -------------- 

2020
 1% increase in 

assumption 

 1% decrease in 

assumption 

There are no plan assets, therefore, disclosure in respect to plan assets required as per IAS-19

"Employee Benefits" has not been made in these financial statements. 

Principal actuarial assumptions(financial and demographic)at the end of the reporting

period (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

 0.56% to 14.344%

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on

obligation for the current and preceding four years is as follows: 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

   5,532,839    5,959,980  5,459,690  5,511,508  5,040,201 
Present value of defined 

benefit obligation

----------------------------------- Rupees ------------------------------------
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 2020 2019

Note  Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax liability-net 22.1  30,057,055 18,236,325        

Tax rates 29% 29%

22.1 Deferred tax liability-net

22.1.1 Analysis of change in deferred tax

Opening balance  18,236,325          10,293,022 
Charged to statement of profit or loss  11,538,412            5,561,005 
Charged to other comprehensive income  282,318            2,382,298 

 30,057,055          18,236,325 

22.1.2

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowed  88,135,093          57,805,855 
Surplus on revaluation of PPE  11,413,497          11,907,468 

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful receivables  (41,425,285)        (35,907,467)
Provision for doubtful loan and advances  (5,384,006)          (5,384,006)
Deferred tax asset on brought forward losses 22.2  (12,496,719)                        -   
Provision for overseas loan  (10,185,525)        (10,185,525)

 30,057,055          18,236,325 

22.2 Deferred tax asset of Rs. 12.496 million due to brought forward losses has been recognized in the

current financial statements, as in the opinion of the management there is certainty regarding

realisability of the amount (2019: Rs. 10.897 million due to brought forward losses was not

recognized based upon management judgement for unrealisability of the amount).

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, 

and the law allows net settlement.

The gross movement in the deferred tax liability during 

the year is as follows:

Net deferred tax liability is comprised of as follows:

22 DEFERRED TAXATION
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2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Sundry creditors 23.1 70,641,342      67,796,863         
Advance rent 23.2 14,374             2,366,207           
Due to sub-contractors 36,170,091      30,546,579         
Accrued expenses 54,866,860      33,763,682         
Due to employees and others 23.3 8,966,299        8,729,298           
Taxes payable 1,169,397

        
849,992

              
Joint venture partners' share of profit 1,620,715

        
1,620,715

           
Other provisions 23.4 35,122,500

      
35,122,500

         
208,571,578
    

180,795,836
       

23.1

-
                   

31,800
                

23.2

Bannu Woolen Mills -

                   

27,750

                
23.3

23.4

This includes balance of related parties as

follows:

This includes balance of related parties as

follows:

This balance includes amounts aggregating Rs. 1.563 million (2019: Rs. 1.563 million) payable

in respect of the loans obtained from the Company's Employees' Provident Fund (the Fund)

during the period from 1995 to 1999. The SECP, during May 2008, had issued show-cause

notices to some of the existing directors as well as ex-directors under various sections of the

repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The SECP, vide its three orders dated

25 June, 2009, had imposed penalties aggregating Rs. 1.005 million under various sections of

the Ordinance on some of the existing directors and ex-directors in their personal capacity. 

These represent provisions made for the potential liability, in respect of borrowings of Saudi

Riyals 2.500 million and Saudi Riyals 5.000 million during the year 1986 for the Saudi

Operations of the Company, that the Company may have to incur as a result of settlement of

overseas dues of National Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the Incentive Scheme under the

State Bank of Pakistan's Circular No.19 of 05 June,1997 (For further detail please refer note

27.2(a) of these financial statements).

The SECP has also directed the Company's Chief Executive to distribute the amount of Rs.

9.153 million to members of the provident fund trust including the employees / directors / ex-

directors of the Company at the time of closure of provident fund trust in the year 1987 as per

their entitlement and to submit an Auditors' certificate confirming that all outstanding money of

the fund has been paid to the members in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the

repealed Ordinance. The Company opened a separate bank account and transferred the entire

amount into it. Subsequently, no further amount  has been paid to members of the Fund.

The General Tyre and Rubber Company

Pakistan Limited
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2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

24 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

24.1  1,442,230  1,442,230 

                     -                           -   

                     -                           -   

                     -                           -   

                     -                           -   

24.1

 1,442,230  1,442,230 

                     -                           -   

                     -                           -   

                     -                           -   
 1,442,230  1,442,230 

25 JOINT VENTURE PARTNER'S ADVANCES

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

26

Old Bannu Road Project -

                   

15,000,000

         

27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1 Contingent assets

27.2 Contingent liabilities

(a)

These advance have been obtained under various Joint Venture agreements to finance the

ongoing projects. The joint venture partner is entitled to share 50% of the projects' profit

financed out of these advances.

MOBILIZATION ADVANCE

Unclaimed dividend

Amounts transferred into dividend account

Dividend claims received and settled

Profits generated from unpaid dividend 

The reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:

Opening balance

Dividends declared

Less: Dividends paid
Interest on dividend

Profits utilized

The Company had lodged a claim with National Highway Authority amounting Rs. 201.177

million (2019: Rs. 201.177 million) against M/s Bayinder for recovery of losses suffered by the

Company attributable to the cessation of work at Islamabad - Peshawar Motorway Project.

During early 80’s, GPL requested USD 2.2 million which was not honored by SBP which

created a chaotic situation. At this stage GoP intervened and arranged two loans of Saudi Riyals

5 million and Saudi Riyals 2.5 million aggregating to Saudi Riyals 7.5 million (equivalent to

Pak Rs. 207.750 million at the rate of Rs. 27.7/ SR) through consortium of banks led by

National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) during 1986. Recovery proceedings of the loans of SR 7.5

million with the interest thereon of SR 21.650 million (equivalent to Rs. 599.705 million at the

rate of Rs. 27.7/ SR) are being contested in the Sindh High Court. 
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(b)

27.3 Commitments

The Company's commitments as at balance sheet date are as follows: 

(a)

(b)

Guarantees issued by a commercial bank and insurance companies in respect of financial and

operational obligations of the Company to various institutions and corporate bodies, aggregate

Rs. 50.062 million (2019: Rs. 50.062 million).

There were no commitments for capital expenditures as at the balance sheet date (2019: nil).

In the ordinary course of business various parties have filed legal cases against the Company,

which have not been admitted as liabilities; accordingly, no provision has been considered

necessary against these claims till their final outcome. The legal advisor of the Company is of

the opinion that these cases are expected to be decided in favor of the Company and therefore

no provision has been made in these financial statements for any liability that may arise

consequent upon the result of above law suits.

During 1988, NBP filed Suit no. 1102 of 1998 before Banking Judge of the High Court of

Sindh (HCS) for recovery of loan against GPL. During 1990, SHC passed the judgment and

decree in favour of NBP. Appeal of GPL was dismissed by Divisional Bench (DB) of SHC and

thereafter by Supreme Court. During 1998, NBP filed the execution application in the SHC. On

November 02, 1999, office of the SHC raised the objection that the execution application was

time barred by limitation, having not been filed within three years. On May 01, 2000, SHC

dismissed the execution application as being barred by time. NBP filed the review application

to DB of SHC against the order and DB restored the execution application.

Further SBP issued a circular no. 19 dated June 05, 1997 for giving guidelines for making the

repayment of stuck off loans and announced an “Incentive Scheme” under the said circular.

GPL applied for the scheme and offered to pay Pak Rupees 35.122 Million (at the exchange

rate of disbursement of loan) however controversy started regarding the application of rate of

exchange applicable in case of foreign currency loans.

The Company's Board of Directors are of the opinion that it falls within the ambit of SBP

“Incentive Scheme” for the Recovery of Loan Defaults vide BPRD Circular no. 19 and, as such, 

liable to pay only Rs. 35.122 million in full and final settlement of its outstanding liability.

The Honourable Sindh High Court, vide its order dated September 17, 2003, had decided for

SR 5.000 million that "proceedings will remain suspended till disposal of the matter by the

Ministry of Finance (MoF), Govt. of Pakistan" and directed both NBP and the MoF to follow

BPRD Circular No. 19 dated 05 June, 1997 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan announcing an

Incentive Scheme in this respect. NBP had filed an application during the year 2000 for

execution of the decrees issued in its favor in both the above cases; however, the Company is

contesting both the cases on legal grounds.
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2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

28 CONTRACT INCOME

Own projects 184,639,178       201,388,164      

29 CONTRACT EXPENDITURE

Materials  103,259,179 124,505,181      
Salaries and wages  55,240,853 36,689,808        
Sub-contracts and joint ventures -                      1,384,874          
Maintenance and hiring of plants  1,696,295 2,418,247

          
Project insurance  454,838 454,635

             
Cartage, traveling and conveyance  1,589,781 1,567,807

          
Site auxiliary works and temporary hutting  255,500 427,790

             
Electricity  247,084 706,594

             Depreciation 6.2  1,905,888 1,615,372
          Petrol, oil and lubricants  3,229,170 6,099,539
          Impairment - stores, spares and loose tools  2,645,725 -
                     Sundry expenses  2,990,310 3,511,854
           173,514,623 179,381,701
      

30

Salaries and benefits  8,483,142 14,565,930

        Staff retirement benefits - gratuity  1,036,121 760,938

             Repair and maintenance  368,794 688,972

             Rent, rates and taxes  1,183,034 1,955,635

          Telephone and fax  140,520 255,397

             Advertisement and publicity  80,340 30,000

               Legal and professional charges  1,564,450 1,643,802

          Power and electricity  1,032,453 805,182

             Travelling and conveyance  1,176,934 789,420

             Works in view  15,010 11,030

               
Provision for loans and advances -

                      

2,617,225

          
Provision for ECL on contract receivables  19,026,962 13,155,605

        
Loss on disposal of stores  36,100 -

                     
Fee and subscription  76,464 695,594

             
Depreciation 6.2  1,996,793 1,623,520

          
Other sundry expenses  1,344,662 1,345,575

          
37,561,779

         

40,943,825

        31 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor remuneration

Statutory audit 450,000

              

400,000

             
Half yearly review 150,000

              

133,000

             
Fee for other certification 20,000

                

20,000

               
620,000

              

553,000

             

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
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2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

32 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:

Profit on deposit and PLS accounts 11,427                25,284               
Income from non-financial assets:

Rental income on investment property 20,673,037         21,771,806        
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets -                      5,100                 
Scrap sales -                      323,354             

20,684,464         22,125,544        

33 FINANCE COST

Bank charges 24,230                15,291               
24,230                15,291               

34

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

35 TAXATION

Current year 17 7,810,833
           

9,414,616
          

Prior year 284,776
              

-
                     

Deferred tax 11,538,412
         

5,561,005
          

19,634,021
         

14,975,621
        

35.1

35.2

36 EARNINGS  PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The applicable income tax rate for the Tax Year 2020 and beyond is 29% on account of changes

made to Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2020. Therefore, deferred tax is

computed at the rate of 29% applicable to the period when temporary differences are expected

to be reversed / utilised. 

The Company, as at June 30, 2020, revalued all of its investment property. The revaluation

exercise was carried out by Impulse (Private) Limited and the revaluation resulted in fair value

gain amounting to Rs. 52.343 million (2019: Rs. 52.760 million).

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 as the Company was liable to pay alternate corporate tax under

the section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT

PROPERTY

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

Note
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Note 2020 2019

Profit after tax (Rupees) 26,312,054         40,404,474        

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the 
end of the year (Numbers) 28,266,231         28,266,231        

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 0.93                    1.43                   

36.1 Earnings per share comprises as follows:

Distributable profit (0.92)                   (0.45)                  
Undistributable - unrealised fair value gains 36.2 1.85                    1.87                   

0.93                    1.43                   

36.2

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.1

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, Associated Companies, directors and

executives. The Company in the normal course of business carries-out transactions with various

related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables and

payables. Remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in note 39 whereas other

significant transactions with related parties are disclosed here.

Under the provisions of Companies Act, 2017 unrealized gain on fair value of investment

property is not distributable as dividend.

The status of outstanding balances of related parties as at June 30, 2020 are included in "other

receivable" (note 14.1) and "trade and other payables" (note 23).

Relationship Transactions during the year 2020 2019

Rupees  Rupees 

Common Rental income       3,000,000        3,000,000 

directorship Rentals received during the year      (3,000,000)      (3,000,000)

Common Rental income       3,000,000 3,000,000
      directorship Rentals received during the year      (3,000,000) (3,000,000)
     

Janana De Malucho Common Rental income          150,000 150,000
         Textile Mills directorship Rentals received during the year         (150,000) (150,000)
        

Babri Cotton Common Rental income          150,000 150,000
         Mills directorship Rentals received during the year         (150,000) (150,000)
        

Rehman Cotton Common Rental income          150,000 150,000
         Mills directorship Rentals received during the year         (150,000) (150,000)
        

Bannu Woollen Common Rental income       3,895,440        5,190,000 

Mills Limited directorship Rentals received during the year      (5,500,000)      (2,200,000)

Ghandhara Nissan 

Limited

Ghandhara 

Industries Limited

Name of the related 

party
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2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

38

Profit before taxation 45,946,075         55,380,095        

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 6.2 3,902,681           3,238,892          

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 21.5 1,036,121           760,938             
Provision for expected credit loss 19,026,962         13,155,605        

Gain on disposal of fixed assets -                      (5,100)                

Fair value gain on investment property 7 (52,343,065)        (52,760,204)       
Finance cost 33 24,230                15,291               

(28,353,071)        (35,594,578)       
17,593,004         19,785,517        

PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL

CHANGES

80
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

41.1 Risk management policies

41.2 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Long term security deposits 1,861,203

      

1,861,203

      

Contract receivables 83,383,124

    

90,733,413

    

Other receivables 1,934,007

      

3,270,046

      

Contract asset 137,143,518

  

93,047,642

    

Bank balances 1,158,868

      

1,807,307

      

225,480,720

  

190,719,611

  

The aging of contract receivables at the reporting date is:

-

                 

-

                 

Past due 1-30 days - -

 

Past due 30-90 days - -
Past due 90 days 83,383,124 90,733,413

83,383,124

    

90,733,413

    

All the trade contract receivables at balance sheet date represent domestic parties.

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’

value. Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of

ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.

The process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The

Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate

risk and price risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working

capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to

minimize risk.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if

counter parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other

receivables. The Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter

parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any

credit enhancements. Out of total financial assets, the financial assets which are subject to credit

risk amounted to Rs. 225.480 million (2019: Rs. 190.719 million). The carrying amounts of

financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

Not past due
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Concentration of credit risk

41.3 Liquidity risk

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit

reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors.

Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar

business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet

contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other

conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial

obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both

normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Company's reputation. The followings are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

including interest payments if any and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with major bank and monitoring exposure limits

on continuous basis.

Carrying Contractual Six months Six to One to Two to Over

Amount Cash or less Twelve two five five 

Flows months years years years

2020

Trade and other payables   180,795,836        180,795,836   180,795,836                   -                -                                -                                -   

Unclaimed dividends        1,442,230            1,442,230                     -        1,442,230              -                                -                                -   

Deferred liability        9,208,876                          -                       -                     -                -                   9,208,876                              -   

Joint venture partner's 

advances      30,059,542          30,059,542      30,059,542                   -                -                                -                                -   

  221,506,484        212,297,608   210,855,378      1,442,230              -                   9,208,876                              -   

Carrying Contractual Six months Six to One to Two to Over

Amount Cash or less Twelve two five five 

Flows months years years years

2019

Trade and other payables   180,795,836        180,795,836   180,795,836                   -                -                                -                                -   

Unclaimed dividends        1,442,230            1,442,230                     -        1,442,230              -                                -                                -   

Deferred liability        9,208,876                          -                       -                     -                -                   9,208,876                              -   

Joint venture partner's 

advances      30,059,542          30,059,542      30,059,542                   -                -                                -                                -   

  221,506,484        212,297,608   210,855,378      1,442,230              -                   9,208,876                              -   

---------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------------------
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41.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates

and equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial

instruments.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arise in financial

instruments that are denominated in foreign currencies i.e. in a currency other then the

functional currency in which they are measured.

Presently the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk except contingencies as disclosed

in note 27.2 to these financial statements.

b) Interest rate risk 

c) Other price risk

42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company is not exposed to any material interest rate risk, except fixed rate financial

instrument (long term investment) which has a fixed rate of interest, therefore, no sensitivity

analysis has been presented.

Interest rate of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2020 can be

evaluated from the schedule given in note 41 to these financial statements.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises

from long term loans and short borrowings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any

significant interest rate risk. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between

knowledgeable willing parties in arms length transactions.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements

approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each

reporting date.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or

currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial

instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

At the year end the Company is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments

whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
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Carrying Carrying

amount amount

83,383,124
      

83,383,124
        

          90,733,413           90,733,413 

137,143,518    137,143,518      
          93,047,642           93,047,642 

22,236,403      22,236,403                  22,440,793           22,440,793 

1,934,007        1,934,007                      3,270,046             3,270,046 

1,204,501        1,204,501                      1,885,836             1,885,836 

     245,901,553        245,901,553         211,377,730         211,377,730 

208,571,578    208,571,578              180,795,836         180,795,836 

1,442,230        1,442,230                      1,442,230             1,442,230 

30,059,542      30,059,542                  30,059,542           30,059,542 

     240,073,350        240,073,350         212,297,608         212,297,608 

Contract asset

The financial instruments that are not traded in active market are carried at cost and are tested for

impairment according to IFRS 9. The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables are

assumed to approximate their fair values.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for

similar financial instruments, if relevant.

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Fair value Fair value
 amortized cost

----------------------------Rupees-------------------------------
Contract receivables

Assets carried at

Loans and advances

Other receivables

Cash and bank 

Liabilities carried at 

amortized cost

Unclaimed dividends

Trade and other 

payables

Joint venture partner's 

advances

As at June 30, 2020 the Company did not hold any financial instruments carried at fair value.

Moreover, investment property and operating fixed assets are measured at fair value.

The investment property and freehold land and building in operating fixed assets were valued on

June 30, 2020 carried out by external independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-               -               445,280,201      445,280,201      

-               -               271,308,582      271,308,582      
-               -               716,588,783      716,588,783      

As at June 30, 2020

Rupees

Investment property carried at 

fair value

Freehold land and buildings

Page - 43
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Reconciliation of net increase in level 3 fair values:

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

        638,411,003         460,982,312 

             (345,100)               (263,343)

          52,343,065           52,760,204 

          26,179,815         124,931,830 

        716,588,783         638,411,003 

Interest rate used for determining fair value 

Fair value at beginning of the year

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the

Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The table below analysis financial

instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different values have been defined as

follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted)  in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

The Company has revalued its freehold land, buildings on June 30, 2020 and plant and machinery

on June 30, 2019 by independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited on the basis of market

values of similar properties. The fair value of free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery is

a level 3 recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value at end of the year

Remeasurement recognized in OCI

Level 2: input other than quoted prices included with in Level 1 that are observable for assets and

liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Remeasurement recognized in profit or loss

Depreciation charged during the year

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the

government yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments

carried at amortized cost, since majority of the interest bearing instruments are variable rate

based instruments, there is no difference in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, for fixed

rate instruments, since there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument

and therefore most of the fixed rate instruments are of short term in nature, fair value significantly

approximates to carrying value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-               -               392,937,135      392,937,135      
-               -               245,473,868      245,473,868      
-               -               638,411,003      638,411,003      

Investment property carried at 

fair value

As at June 30, 2019

Rupees

Freehold land and buildings
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42.1

43 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

 785,777,323  732,620,160 

Borrowings -

                      

-

                      

785,777,323

       

732,620,160

        

Gearing ratio -

                      

-

                      

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Determination of fair values

The capital structure of the Company is as follows:

Equity

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors

monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by

total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary

shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during

the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The fair value of non-derivate financial asset is estimated as the present value of future cash

flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value is determined

for disclosure purposes.

Non-derivate financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value

of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the

reporting date.

With reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to "All Shares Islamic Index", the Company does not

have investment, bank balance or other operations having Islamic mode therefore, individual

items required by circular no. 14 of 2016 have not been disclosed.

Non-derivate financial asset

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting

period during which the change the occurred. However, there is no transfers between levels

during the year.

A number of the Company's accounting polices and disclosures require the determination of fair

value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined

of measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
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45 JOINT VENTURES

45.1

45.2

Rs. in million Investor

Khalifa Gul Nawaz Medical Complex, Bannu 402.36 50%

Durrani Public School, Bannu - Phase II 295 50%

Hawad / Nurar Bridges, Bannu 176.42 50%

46 INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS

47 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2020 2019

Numbers Numbers

Total number of employees
At June 30, 21 29

Average during the year 23 36

48 IMPACT OF COVID-19

The Joint Venture for execution of Bong Canal Bridge, Mangla with Sarwar Construction (Private)

Limited was in the ratio of 60:40 and the Company recognized its own share i.e. 60% of income and

expenses in the preceding years' financial statements.

As approved by the Board of Directors, the management had entered into Joint Venture

arrangements for the execution of the following Projects in prior years:

Project 

value

Profit 

sharing ratio

The actual amount invested by the Joint Venture Partner has been shown under Joint Venture

Partner's advances in these financial statements (note 25).

For management purposes, the activities of the Company have been divided into own projects and

joint ventures. The Company operates in these business segments based on risk and return,

organizational and management structure and internal financial reporting systems. Operating results

of joint ventures have not been separately disclosed in these financial statements as these do not

meet the minimum thresholds prescribed by IFRS 8 (Operating Segments).

The Company's operations are confined to Pakistan in terms of customers; accordingly, the figures

reported in these financial statements relate to the Company's business segments relating to

Pakistan.

The Company has two (2019: two) customers having contract income of 10% or more during the

year.

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered

human lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. In March, 2020, the Government

of the Pakistan announced a temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the

COVID–19. Complying with the lockdown, the Company temporarily suspended its operations

from March 21, 2020. The lockdown was subsequently relaxed for construction industry by the
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-going concern assumption used for the preparation of these financial statements.

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

50 GENERAL

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

Amounts printed in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of rupee, unless

otherwise stated.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05,2020 by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

- expected credit losses under IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’;

- the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, ‘Inventories and store, spares and loose tools.

According to management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of

COVID-19 in these financial statements except a decline in sales as compared to previous year due

to suspension of operations during lockdown period from March 21, 2020 to May 31, 2020.

Govt from April 25, 2020 when Govt announce to open project sites. After implementing all the

necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, However the

Company henceforth resumed its headoffice operations from June 1, 2020 and has taken all

necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation of its business in order to maintain

business performance despite slowed down economic activity. The lockdown has caused

disruptions in the supply chain including supply to the customers and transportation of labour at site

resulting in a decline in revenue. It is also expected that the outbreak may result in lower demand in

future. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these developments on

these financial statements, including but not limited to the following areas:
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SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL -DATA

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::PAK  RUPEES:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

Rupees in 

Contract Income Million 344.643 495.088 413.30       385.17     201.388 184.639

Net Contract Profit /loss Rupees in 23.222 33.529 19.59         52.00       22.006 11.124

Million

BALANCE SHEET

Shareholders equity Rupees in 

(Including surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets) Million 429.881 479.256 517.181 569.905 732.62 785.777

Opera�ng Fixed Assets Rupees in 

Million 99.654 129.563 145.64       144.70     266.279 288.573

Rupees in 

Current Assets Million 332.196 336.532 310.68       309.59     328.029 356.703

Rupees in 

Current Liabili�es Million 212.380 211.232 219.77249 207.7537 230.342 269.16

Rupees in 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end Million 17.516 38.358 7.14            4.15          1.885 1.204
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